Minutes of the Board of Commissioners – July 16, 2013, continued.


BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

CITY OF DOTHAN, ALABAMA

REGULAR MEETING

JULY 16, 2013
The Board of Commissioners of the City of Dothan, Alabama, met in regular session in the Commission Chambers of the Roy Driggers Municipal Building at 10:00 A.M., Tuesday, July 16, 2013 with the following members present:  Mayor Mike Schmitz, Associate Commissioners James H. Reading, Amos M. Newsome, Jr., Albert Kirkland, Critt Snellgrove, Taylor Barbaree and Hamp Baxley.  Also present were City Manager Michael West, City Clerk Pam McCoy, Administrative Assistant Tammy Danner, who recorded the Minutes of the Meeting, and the local news media representatives.

Mayor Schmitz called the meeting to order. Dr. Charles Lewis, Dothan Community Church, then led in prayer, afterwhich Commissioner Snellgrove led in the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag.

Commissioner Barbaree moved that the Minutes of the Meeting of July 2, 2013, be approved, motion seconded by Commissioner Baxley and unanimously approved.

Mayor Schmitz welcomed several area elected officials and dignitaries to the meeting. 

Mayor Schmitz presented and read a proclamation, proclaiming July 23, 2013 as “Kindergarten Readiness Day” in the City of Dothan. Jeff Coleman and other members who are part of a Kindergarten Readiness Networking group were present for the proclamation.

Commissioner Reading expressed appreciation to Mayor Schmitz for his help with the youth at the church in which Commissioner Reading attends. 

Commissioner Reading said he and his son will be traveling to Scotland to attend the British Open Golf Tournament. He expressed appreciation to Bob Hendrix for help getting tickets to the tournament. 

Commissioner Reading said a funeral is going on at his church right now. He said the young man was 21 years old and the grave plot is at the City cemetery on Montgomery Highway. Commissioner Reading said the City owns these cemeteries and pays the Wiregrass Rehabilitation Center to cut and clean them. However, someone had to go in there and cut the weeds at the grave site to get it properly cleaned for burial. Commissioner Reading said this is unacceptable. He said if the Rehab Center cannot do their job adequately then we need to look at hiring someone else. 
Commissioner Newsome said a good, routine cleaning of the cemeteries would be appreciated. He said he has brought this up several times. 

In regard to the Community Development Block Grant, Commissioner Newsome asked if we have accountability from those who received money dispersed in our last grant. City Manager West said we require receipts before we reimburse them. Todd McDonald, Planning Director said for several of them we do require receipts. He said at the end of every year we go through what is called a “Comprehensive Annual Review” (CAPR) where money that comes into the program has to be accounted for to the dime, not only by us, but by HUD. Mr. McDonald said that is done a year in arrears so we just finished 2011. Commissioner Newsome said he would like to see copies from those who received those funds. Mr. McDonald said he would get copies for him.

Commissioner Newsome said the property owner of the seven unit apartment complex located at the corner of Grant Street and Sixth Avenue has made no effort, to his knowledge, to remedy the deteriorating apartments or to cut weeds and repair fences. Commissioner Newsome said he has watched these apartments slowly deteriorate. He then asked City Manager West to use this as an example to give a timeline on what exactly happens in the time required for corrective action including the legal time for advertising and the time for bidding for the demolition. He said we are at that point with those apartments. Mr. West said he has that in an email and will send that to everyone. Commissioner Newsome said our residents sometime think we are being slow about what we are doing. He said we are dealing with property that someone owns. In this case, the property owner lives in Jacksonville, Florida. This property owner has made no effort and very little communication to do anything. Commissioner Newsome said it takes time because of the legal requirements. He said we are working to eliminate dilapidated, over grown nuisances that impact the health of our community. 

Commissioner Snellgrove asked that anyone who knows of a lot that is overgrown with weeds and grass to turn it in as soon as you see it because it does take time to go through the process of getting it cut. 

Commissioner Barbaree congratulated the Westbrook neighborhood for completing their first neighborhood watch group meeting last week. 
Commissioner Barbaree said we voted to approve money for a BRAC study through Friends of Ft. Rucker sometime back. He asked for an update at the next commission meeting on where we are with the study and what was found. 

Commissioner Baxley encouraged residents of his district and around town to be on the lookout for random acts of crime going on during the daytime hours and if they see something suspicious to please contact the Police Department.

Mayor Schmitz read a portion of a card he received from Joe Sette, Director of the Wiregrass Museum of Art regarding the World War II Exhibition held at the Museum. Mayor Schmitz expressed appreciation to Mr. Sette for honoring our World War II Veterans in this way and for sharing it with our children.  
City Manager West announced that the Junior Police Academy began yesterday at Wiregrass Recreation Center with eighteen participants. 
City Manager West stated that the Planning Department is working on neighborhood plans for the southwest urban neighborhood at this time. There will be a public input meeting on August 8th from 6:00 p.m. to 8:00 p.m. at Selma Street Elementary School.  

City Manager West announced that the City received a Recycling Grant in the amount of $298,000.00. 

City Manager West said the environmental cleanup has begun at the National Guard Armory at Westgate. 
Elston Jones, Leisure Services Director announced that the post-season softball teams were eliminated earlier this week. However, the Junior Dixie Boys Team will advance to Enterprise on the 19th. 
City Manager West reminded the Commission to adjourn today’s meeting until tomorrow morning at 8:30 a.m. in order to approved election officials and their pay for the upcoming municipal election that will be held on August 6th. 

Mayor Schmitz introduced the application of John M. McCurley for a Lounge Retail Liquor License, Class I for Blue Bar and Grill, located at 3700 Ross Clark Circle, Suite 4. Mr. Edmond Gibson stated that he lives behind this establishment at 1509 Springhill Terrace. He said he is concerned with this establishment turning into a night club where they have to contend with loud music all through the night. He said there were numerous calls to the police department when the previous owners of Plan B had the establishment open because of the noise, etc. Mr. Gibson said he lives about 200 feet behind this establishment. He said there are no laws within the City of Dothan that allow residents to be interviewed at the time of applications.  Mr. Gibson said he was not sure what the new owners will be doing with this bar and grill, but he is trying to eliminate the disturbance that he may have during the evening and late night hours. 

Mr. McCurley stated that this is not a sports bar and he will do everything he can to eliminate what it was and give the people something more upscale and nicer. He said he never stepped foot in Plan B so he is completely unaware of what type problems they had before. Mr. McCurley said if there are any problems that he would take care of them. Commissioner Barbaree expressed appreciation to Mr. McCurley for coming today and stated that the realty company listed him as a sports bar. Mr. McCurley said this is not going to be a sports bar; it will be more upscale with only seven TVs. He said there will be more emphasis on food. Commissioner Barbaree asked Mr. McCurley if he owns or operates other establishments in Dothan. Mr. McCurley said he is part owner of a Chee Burger Restaurant in another city. 

Commissioner Baxley said he received a number of calls yesterday from residents in District 6 concerned about this and he asked Mr. McCurley to work with them and be mindful of their rights and what they enjoy at their homes.  Mr. McCurley said he definitely would. 

Commissioner Barbaree expressed appreciation to Mr. McCurley for his investment in Dothan. There being no further discussion Commissioner Barbaree moved for approval, motion seconded by Commissioner Reading and unanimously carried.
Mayor Schmitz introduced the application of Ruby Vickers for a Private Investigator License, d/b/a Insight Investigation, located at 1210 Indiana Avenue, Lynn Haven, Florida. Commissioner Kirkland moved for approval, motion seconded by Commissioner Snellgrove and unanimously carried.
Mayor Schmitz announced a Public Hearing regarding the abatement and removal of noxious or dangerous weeds. Commissioner Barbaree said 115 Gloster Court has been an eye sore for a long time and he is glad to see some relief coming. There being no one else wishing to speak, Mayor Schmitz declared the Public Hearing closed.
Mayor Schmitz introduced Resolution No. 2013-214 (recorded in Ordinance Book No._______at Page_______), declaring certain properties which are overgrown with weeds, scrub, wild bushes, grass and other vegetable growth as injurious to the health, safety and welfare of the community as nuisances and ordering that the properties be abated. Commissioner Barbaree moved for adoption, motion seconded by Commissioner Newsome. Commissioner Barbaree said there have been several comments mentioned by commissioners regarding this and he concurs with what they are saying, but we are held by what state code says we can do. Commissioner Barbaree said this needs to change with home rule; it is long overdue. There being no further discussion the resolution was unanimously adopted.

Mayor Schmitz introduced Resolution No. 2013-215 (recorded in Ordinance Book No._______at Page_______), appointing Marshall P. Perry as Civic Center/Opera House Director at the annual salary of $79,500.00 effective August 15, 2013. Commissioner Barbaree moved for adoption, motion seconded by Commissioner Kirkland. City Manager West gave some background history and introduced Mr. Perry to everyone. Commissioner Barbaree said he sent out an email announcing Mr. Perry and received comments back from several people. One in particular was from Jeff Coleman. Commissioner Barbaree said Jeff gets it. Commissioner Barbaree then read a prepared statement. 

“The addition of Marshall Perry as Performing Arts Director is an important hire for our city and is long overdue. My opinion is based on the fact that the only cultural activities the Civic Center and Opera House host are non-profit events. I am also constantly asked by moms and dads as to why we don’t have more family-like shows. With this hire today, I am hopeful that we can begin hosting venues that will compliment SEDAC, SEACT, Music South and other non-profits. Dothan should lead the area in entertainment and cultural events and if we do it property and correctly it will be a boost to our economy.” 

Commissioner Newsome said Mr. Perry is coming from Fayetteville, North Carolina. He said he has spent time there and it is a diverse area. Commissioner Newsome said the Wiregrass encompasses everything between Montgomery and Tallahassee and everything between Pensacola and Waycross, Georgia. He said we expect a lot from Mr. Perry and are willing to do what we need to do to ensure that this becomes a productive building in which we sit. He said if it becomes that productive maybe we can find a new place to have our commission meeting!

Commissioner Reading said we spend about a half million dollars per year of taxpayers’ money.  He said he would consider Mr. Perry successful if we just broke even and welcomed him aboard. 
Mr. Perry said he has met the staff and everyone has been very supportive. He said he is looking forward to being here. There being no further discussion the resolution was unanimously adopted.

Mayor Schmitz introduced Resolution No. 2013-216 (recorded in Ordinance Book No._______at Page_______), entering into a contract with Bradley & Schmidt Architecture for the design, bidding and administration of renovations at the Doug Tew Recreation Center at a cost of $68,658.00 and appropriating funds for said services. Commissioner Snellgrove moved for adoption, motion seconded by Commissioner Barbaree. Commissioner Baxley said he hopes Leisure Services and General Services look in the future to make sure we are spending this money wisely. He said Doug Tew needs some assistance, but he wants it to be used in the right way where the people can actually use it. There being no further discussion the resolution was unanimously adopted.

Mayor Schmitz introduced Resolution No. 2013-217 (recorded in Ordinance Book No._______at Page_______), consenting to and approving the continuation of the existing services and facilities of the Southeast Alabama Solid Waste Disposal Authority located in the city limits of Dothan, Alabama. Commissioner Baxley moved to amend the resolution to include “permission to operate shall expire in one year; to be renewed annually”, motion seconded by Commissioner Barbaree.  Mayor Schmitz explained that the amendment was to look at this again in a year and vote again. He said that does not mean that we are going to do that forever. Commissioner Baxley said it will be whatever we decide to do the next time around. He said the reason he is making the amendment is that every other local business has to come back and buy a business license every year. He said it is only fair that the Authority come back on an annual basis to make sure everything is going alright with the arrangement.  
Commissioner Newsome asked if what is being proposed is that, after one year, what we are doing today will expire? Commissioner Baxley said that is correct. Mayor Schmitz said we will look at it again and vote again. Commissioner Newsome said we are going to look at it anyway. He wanted to know why it has to expire in one year if we are going to look at it anyway. Commissioner Baxley said this puts it on the entity to come back to us to make sure that we do not have a short memory about this and we look at it as every other business has to look at it. Commissioner Newsome said he has been here ten years and his memory is 80 years old and not that short. He then asked why do we have to have a new resolution in one year; why not look at it and if we do not like it then have a resolution that terminates it completely. If we like it then we will continue to march. 

Commissioner Barbaree said he is not against reviewing this in a year. On a different note, he then asked Mr. West to check into other municipalities and the League of Municipalities……………he said when we have cable companies come to us and ask for permission to operate in the city we do not do anything to hold them accountable. Commissioner Barbaree said there are cable wires running down the road and opened cable boxes and telephone boxes in neighborhoods falling apart. He said it is unsafe and unsightly. Commissioner Barbaree said we need to have some teeth in the resolution next time we approve one of them. He said this is not the subject that we are talking about, but he thought it was an appropriate time to bring it up.

Commissioner Reading said this has been a gut wrenching issue. He said Commissioner Newsome and himself met with Mayor Blackwell about a month ago to go over this. He said he was enlightened on the whole scheme of things. Commissioner Reading said when you do not want to start a turf war; we are all in this together. He said we have companies here in Dothan that do business in Henry, Dale and Coffee Counties and when you start protecting your own turf, if you dig a hole for one person, maybe you should dig two; one for yourself later on. Commissioner Reading said what goes around comes around. He said we want to be good neighbors, but we want to be fair. Commissioner Reading asked what is going to change in a year? 

Mayor Schmitz said we always have the right to look at it. He said he did not see any issue with us looking at it again. He said hopefully we will pass this today and they will continue to do business like they have for the last ten years. 

Commissioner Newsome asked Mayor Schmitz if he is going to ask the Commission to approve the amendment.  Mayor Schmitz said yes and it will allow them to continue to do business in Dothan.  There being no further discussion and upon the motion to amend the resolution being put to a vote, those voting “yea,” were Schmitz, Reading, Snellgrove, Barbaree and Baxley;  “nay:” Newsome and Kirkland.  The motion was carried by the majority of five "yeas" to two “nays.” Commissioner Barbaree then moved to approve the resolution as amended, motion seconded by Commissioner Snellgrove.
Mr. Jim Martin stated that this is something that has been knawing at him for ten years. He said he was too small to raise his voice and had no support. Mr. Martin said he wondered if the Southeast Alabama Solid Waste Disposal Authority had come before this Commission ten years ago like Coffee County did and ask permission to do business in this city if they would have approved it. Mr. Martin said when you say things about fairness and doing what is right he does not get to run up and down the road with government tags on his truck that he does not pay anything for. He said he has to pay taxes on everything he buys in this community. Mr. Martin said you have a real important issue before you today. There is a lot of power involved here; all these men here from all over to represent the Solid Waste Authority. Mr. Martin said he is taking a chance coming up here because he uses their facilities. He said he dumps commercial waste at their transfer stations, which by his intelligence says that is what they were formed for. Mr. Martin said it was to give cities and counties a place to dump their waste because they did not have the money to open a landfill. Mr. Martin said this is about fairness. They say they are here to keep a level price for their customers. Mr. Martin said their customers are not commercial businesses. He said Houston County and the City of Dothan is not a member of the Authority anymore. Mayor Schmitz said Houston County is getting out; at this point they still are. Mr. Martin said he did not understand their being or what they are here for except to keep a price so low he cannot compete with them. He said at the same time he is not terribly higher than they are because he has seven competitors and he believes in free and open competition.  Mr. Martin said he comes up here with some fear because they can make his life miserable next week. He said he just wants things to be fair and make them start buying tags and insurance. Mr. Martin said he does not understand where the Solid Waste Authority gets their money or how they started. 

Commissioner Barbaree said he has been on this Commission for eight years; it has been a learning curve and still is. He said he cannot fundamentally agree with a government entity being in the commercial waste business. Commissioner Barbaree said if it is the will of the Commission he will not say another word about it, but that is his opinion. Commissioner Barbaree said he has a lot of respect for our leaders, men and women, who do great jobs for our communities that are sitting in here, but from this chair, which he was elected to serve another term, does not fundamentally believe that government needs to be in the commercial waste business.

At this time, Commissioner Baxley read from a prepared statement:

“When any issue comes before this board, I ask myself two very simple questions in order to make a decision. First, is there a benefit to the citizens of Dothan if the measure is approved? Second, is there any negative impact on the citizens of Dothan if the measure is approved? The proposal before this Board today FAILS both of these simple questions. Thus, I believe this Board has an easy decision, but I have been told the decision isn’t quite so easy – so I asked my constituents. After polling my constituents – 100% of the parties I talked to are against this proposal.  I also like to keep up to date on current issues – so I read the local newspaper and read local websites to see what data might be available.  Any and all news sources which investigated this issue have come to the conclusion that this proposal is a bad proposal for the City of Dothan.  Therefore, in my opinion, this Board’s decision today is very easy. But, I want the record to be crystal clear about what we are voting on today so that no member of this Board can claim ignorance as to what they were voting on at a later date – First, let there be no mistake – this entity is a government-entity, NOT a private company. Second, let there be no mistake – this entity has been operating in the City of Dothan for over 10 years – with full knowledge that they were supposed to get authorization to operate. Third, there is no benefit whatsoever to the citizens of Dothan if this measure is approved. Those three facts alone should be enough to deny this entity the ability to operate any longer in our area. This Commission cannot claim to be business-friendly if it allows this entity to operate. I have been told that the “regional cooperation” aspect is the reason we need to allow this entity to operate.  I just don’t “buy” that argument as we have proven time and time again that we will work with any and every local government in our area.  We give away fire trucks, police vehicles, and surplus material.  Our emergency services and utilities go wherever a need arises – and will continue to do so.  But, when it comes to a measure like this which provides zero benefit to the taxpayers in our City and which hurts local businesses – you can’t support it and call it regionalism when it violates our oath of office and every aspect of common sense. I have also been told that if we don’t approve this measure, it would be the same as picking winners and losers in other lines of business.  I say nothing could be farther from the truth when in fact the EXACT OPPOSITE is the case.  If we approve this measure, we have likely sealed the fate of a number of local companies – they will not be able to compete.  If we approve this measure – we will be handing power to make or break businesses to a bunch of politicians instead of allowing the open market to determine winners and losers. This proposal is no different than if we authorized our trash service to leave our city and go compete against this same entity in Ozark, Dale County and Henry County.  I don’t believe the governmental entities in those areas would be happy to see us take that action – therefore, why should we be in a rush to approve the same bad business practice here in our own city. I would like for any of my esteemed colleagues or possibly the entity’s representatives to explain to me what benefit the residents of Dothan receive?  If it’s low-cost waste removal, then you just made my point for me – you have proven to me that cost is the only benefit of this organization’s very existence and that if it didn’t have the cost-savings associated with a government run entity – it could not exist. I urge my fellow commissioners to use their God-Given common sense and look at what this proposal is – a bad deal for Dothan businesses, a bad deal for Dothan’s citizens and a bad deal for Dothan altogether.  I urge everyone to vote against this proposal.”

Commissioner Newsome said when there is an issue before this Commission that may be a very good issue. He said you can continue to load that issue with bitter pills i.e. amendments and it will become bitter. Commissioner Newsome said when this issue came before us in our Administrative meeting he supported it, but what we have done is to load it with a bitter pill. He said we see that everyday somewhere else and we know where that is. Commissioner Newsome said if we do not like it we add an amendment to it to make it unsatisfactory with those who are requesting the services. He said this is not how we should operate here; we should operate openly and clearly so that our citizens understand the direction in which we are going not the way we operate in a court room where many of the citizens who are sitting even the jurors do not even understand what is going on. Commissioner Newsome said the amendment that we have added is a bitter pill. He said he is not going to give anyone a dose of medicine that contains a bitter pill; definitely not the community that surrounds our city. 
In reference to Mr. Martin’s comments, Commissioner Barbaree stated that he feels like we represent all of our constituents, all of our residents. He said we are not like most government officials, you see us in the grocery store, church, or out and about, there is no place for us to hide. Commissioner Barbaree said he is not disrespecting Mr. Martin by disagreeing with him, but he does not want anyone to feel like they do not have a voice here. He said he knows what it is like to have doors shut in his face. Commissioner Barbaree said he does not want anyone to feel they cannot come and sit down and talk about something. He said personally he has not heard from anyone from the Solid Waste Authority; no one has contacted him. Commissioner Barbaree said he guesses his opinion does not matter, but he has had private businesses contact him. He said he appreciates the leadership of our Mayor and what he does in trying to keep everything on an even keel. Commissioner Barbaree said he can speak for his colleagues when he says that they all have an open door policy and he does not want anyone to feel like they do not have a voice here. 
Commissioner Baxley asked if anyone from the Solid Waste Authority is going to address the Commission today. Mayor Schmitz said they will if we ask them to. Commissioner Baxley said he believes the public needs to hear their response to the concerns that private businesses have. Mayor Schmitz then asked Ozark Mayor Billy Blackwell to address the Commission.

Mayor Blackwell said there have been questions about how and why the Solid Waste Authority was formed and how they operate and he would like to address those questions. Mayor Blackwell said over twenty years ago, Dothan and all the governments in the United States were faced with EPA regulations that were going to require the enforcement of the Subtitle D Landfill regulations.  Mayor Blackwell said your landfills had to meet certain requirements, which was a very expensive proposition. He said Dale, Henry, and Geneva Counties were not fortunate enough to have a landfill in their counties that met those requirements. The probate judges of Dale, Henry, Houston, and Geneva Counties and the Mayors of Ozark and the City of Eufaula got together and said what we need to do since none of us can individually afford to build a landfill in our own counties is to build a regional facility that we can operate ourselves at a cost that we can afford. Mayor Blackwell said they formed the Southeast Alabama Solid Waste Disposal Authority. He said the SASWDA originally had fifteen or seventeen members. The members were appointed by the Commissions of those four counties and the City of Ozark and the City of Eufaula. Mayor Blackwell said those have governed that Authority. The appointees have consisted of public employees, private business people, and elected officials. He said there is no limit on who can be appointed to the Authority. Mayor Blackwell said there was an opportunity to build a landfill in Dale County so the Authority moved in that direction. In order to operate the landfill it was imperative at that time that all of the solid waste that was generated in those counties would go to that landfill so that it could pay for itself. Mayor Blackwell said a private business saw it a different way and they filed litigation against the Authority and that prevented the Authority from building their own landfill. Because the time was coming for the EPA regulations, Mayor Blackwell said the Authority entered into an agreement with two entities: the Coffee County Commission, who were building their own landfill and were going to be successful in doing so, and the City of Dothan, to use their landfill for Houston County and their solid waste collection business and also those entities in Houston County such as Ashford, Columbia and the other entities that provided their own solid waste to use the Dothan landfill. Mayor Blackwell said that agreement has been in place since 1992. He said the Authority said they were going to build three transfers stations; one in Henry County, one in Dale County, and one in Geneva County and those entities in those counties will deliver their solid waste to those transfer stations and then it will be delivered to one of the landfills in either Coffee County or City of Dothan. Mayor Blackwell said Houston County, Geneva, Henry, Dale and the City of Ozark had to guarantee that debt for the Solid Waste Authority to build those three transfer stations. He said the three transfer stations were built. The Authority had only one employee and that was a general manager. They contracted with Scientific Industries in Dothan to operate the transfer stations for them. They also contracted with Waste Management, Inc. to do the hauling of the waste from the transfer stations to Coffee County and City of Dothan landfill. Mayor Blackwell said this operation went on a shoe string because they were crippled by the litigation that was passed. They still had obligations to pay in relation to that so in 2003 the Authority said for them to be successful they will have to diversify their business in some way. Mayor Blackwell said the Authority decided they could provide some services within the solid waste collection industry to help with their cash flow and help with their bottom line to make everyone’s cost be affordable. He said they entered into several contracts in 2003 mostly with municipalities and some with private businesses. Mayor Blackwell said the question was asked, “why did you operate illegally for ten years,” he said there is a law on the books that says if a solid waste authority goes into your municipality then you have to have their permission. He said he has heard that he was quoted as saying “no idea”, Mayor Blackwell said they knew that it pertained to constructing a landfill in a community or it would also include constructing a transfer station in a community, but they had no idea that it consisted also of setting a simple dumpster at a business in a community. Mayor Blackwell said they did not learn until later that it did as Commissioner Baxley pointed out. He said the intent of the law is one thing, but what the law actually says is another. Mayor Blackwell said Commissioner Baxley is exactly correct about that and that is why we are here today. He said that is what they did in 2003. Mayor Blackwell said in 2005, when Hurricane Katrina hit the Gulf Coast, Barry Moore Industries who operates out of Enterprise and Coffee County operated a front loader business and also roll-off containers and was involved in disaster debris removal. He put his emphasis on the Coast and doing clean up down there. Mayor Blackwell said Mr. Moore asked the Solid Waste Authority to service his front loader accounts in Enterprise and Coffee County. Mayor Blackwell said they came to an agreement and serviced his accounts thinking that he was going to come back and take them over when he finished his business on the Coast. Mayor Blackwell said about 2007, Mr. Moore said he believed he needed to concentrate on the business that he was doing and would like to sell the Authority his front loader business. Mayor Blackwell said the Southeast Alabama Waste Disposal Authority bought the private business of Barry Moore. He said they have been operating that way since then. Mayor Blackwell said it may not be critical to Dothan, but it is very critical to Dale, Henry, and Geneva Counties and the Cities of Eufaula and Ozark and the other municipalities that are members. He said this is a critical part of our business and we would hope that the City of Dothan would give us the opportunity, the same opportunity that you have given other businesses to come into Dothan and operate. Mayor Blackwell said the Solid Waste Authority has 127 accounts that have a City of Dothan address. He said he did not know whether or not all of those are in the city limits. Mayor Blackwell said accounting for the number of businesses that are in Dothan that require a dumpster; the Solid Waste Authority has less than five percent of that business here in Dothan. Mayor Blackwell said it does not look like they are a whole lot of competition. He said it is vital to them for them to maintain their reasonable effort that they are doing right now with the counties that surround Dothan and Houston County and those cities that are in there. Mayor Blackwell said what the Solid Waste Authority would like is this Commission’s permission to come into the City of Dothan, continue to conduct our business, expand our business if some of the citizens so desire our services, and continue to be partners with the City of Dothan by using its landfill. He said Houston County is in the process of getting out of the Solid Waste Authority and the reason for this is that when the City of Dothan began working on their long range plan for the solid waste disposal, Houston County and Dothan came together with an agreement and that agreement provided them a less expensive way to dispose of their solid waste with the City of Dothan. Mayor Blackwell said they appreciate the partnership they have had with Houston County. He expressed appreciation to the Commission and said he would be glad to answer questions from the Commission.

Commissioner Baxley said in Mr. Nicholas original letter dated April 25th, written to this Commission, it stated that this was an oversight and regretted the error. He then asked Mayor Blackwell when the Authority became aware that they were not operating properly. Mayor Blackwell said the City of Brundidge brought this to the Authority’s attention over a year ago. Commissioner Baxley then asked Mayor Blackwell since they were put on notice at that time did they ever seek to come forward about this. Mayor Blackwell said in having an agreement with the City of Dothan using the landfill they did not. He said we are here where we are today; if it was a mistake then it was a mistake. Mayor Blackwell said we are here today asking this Commission to approve the request. 

Commissioner Newsome asked Mayor Blackwell, considering the situation as it exists now, if the Solid Waste Authority can live with the amended resolution we are voting on today? Mayor Blackwell said he did not see a whole lot changing in a year’s time. However, the resolution states you cannot solicit any other business and the Authority would like to request that it be amended to allow them to solicit other business. Mayor Schmitz said that is not on the table today. Commissioner Newsome said a lot of times when you have not been there or if you have not done that then you do not fully understand it. He said twenty years ago he was serving on the council in the small town of Kinsey under Mayor Harold Raley, Jr. Commissioner Newsome said he knows what the situation was on solid waste at that time. He said they were very concerned in Kinsey. Houston County was going to be involved. The City of Dothan had a solid waste disposal location. Outlying small towns did not have that. Commissioner Newsome said they somewhat opted to go with Houston County, but then questioned why go with Houston County when we had the City of Dothan right here next to us. He said the Town of Kinsey decided to use the City of Dothan. Commissioner Newsome said they did not have the money necessary to do what had to be done when they had to do it. He said they took the route of least resistance and went with the City of Dothan. Commissioner Newsome said no one on this Commission has ever sat on a council in a small town and faced the problems that small town mayors and councilmen or commissioners have faced. He said he can appreciate the problems they have. Commissioner Newsome said the City of Dothan is a hub and we have better personnel, training, and professional development than small towns. He said we need to understand that and be sensitive to their needs. They are people and citizens who come to our city to shop and spend their money.  
Mayor Schmitz said, as a long time business man in our community, he gets private against government versus government and business. He said when you sit in this chair you have to look at the big picture. Mayor Schmitz said in spite of what the District 6 Commissioner has said, if we vote against the way he feels, he says that means we are not pro business. Mayor Schmitz said this is the most pro business commission that he has seen in a long time. He said we work great with President Parker, Chairman Culver, the City of Ozark, and all of the communities. Mayor Schmitz said when we were recruiting Commercial Jet, which is a great addition to our community at the airport, we needed Dale County to pass a law or we would not have gotten them. He said Dale County could have said no and in the past we had the same type of view point that District 6 Commissioner has today. Mayor Schmitz said if we vote this way it would hurt our regional friendship and regional partnership. He said we talk about government; the City of Dothan collects solid waste and charges, the City of Dothan is in the electric business, but most of all we talk about doing businesses in other communities; the City of Dothan, along with fourteen municipalities owns Southeast Alabama Gas District. He said the same people sitting in this crowd sit on the Board with us and the City of Dothan is the biggest benefiter of the Southeast Alabama Gas District. Mayor Schmitz said we have to work together. He said we need to resolve this. The fact that we look at it in a year is an important thing to do. Mayor Schmitz said when Academy Sports built their new retail operation they spent millions of dollars and hired over 150 people. They did not build that just for the City of Dothan. Their customers come from the entire region. Mayor Schmitz said there may be things that happen this year and the Solid Waste Authority does not need to stay here next year. He said he will then look into it. Mayor Schmitz said the City of Dothan welcomes Henry County, Dale County, Ozark, Abbeville, Headland, Daleville, and others to our community. He said we have so many great things going on right now because we do work together. Mayor Schmitz said he would ask that we continue to work together and that the District 6 Commissioner vote for his own amended resolution and this Commission to vote for it and look at it again in a year. There being no further discussion and upon the motion being put to vote, those voting “yea,” were Schmitz, Reading, Newsome, Kirkland, and Snellgrove;  “nay:” Barbaree and Baxley.  The motion was carried by the majority of five "yeas" to two “nays.” 
Mayor Schmitz introduced Resolution No. 2013-218 (recorded in Ordinance Book No._______at Page_______), acknowledging that the Dothan-Houston County Airport Authority is acting in cooperation with the City of Dothan in applying for funding assistance for the construction of ramp and drainage improvements to benefit the location of Commercial Jet Services, LLC in the Dothan Airport Industrial Park. Commissioner Barbaree moved for adoption, motion seconded by Commissioner Newsome and unanimously adopted.

Mayor Schmitz introduced Resolution No. 2013-219 (recorded in Ordinance Book No._______at Page_______), amending the agreement with Xerox for the lease of a copy machine to be located in the Leisure Services Department, Rose Hill Senior Center, to add a fax kit and a printer kit for an additional cost of $56.78 monthly for a thirty-four (34) month period. Commissioner Barbaree moved for adoption, motion seconded by Commissioner Snellgrove and unanimously adopted.

Mayor Schmitz introduced Resolution No. 2013-220 (recorded in Ordinance Book No._______at Page_______), amending the agreement with the United States Department of Justice, through the United States Marshals Service, to accept an additional $800.00 for reimbursement of overtime costs for officers working Gulf Coast Regional Fugitive Task Force cases bringing the total amount of funding available for reimbursement to $13,100.00 and appropriating funds for said reimbursement. Commissioner Newsome moved for adoption, motion seconded by Commissioner Kirkland and unanimously adopted.

Mayor Schmitz introduced Resolution No. 2013-221 (recorded in Ordinance Book No._______at Page_______), executing Change Order No. 2 to the contract with Stuart C. Irby Co. for the FCC Licensed Radio Communications System Project for additional cable hardware increasing the contract price by $1,178.80 with a total contract cost of $155,861.70. Commissioner Reading moved for adoption, motion seconded by Commissioner Snellgrove and unanimously adopted.

Mayor Schmitz introduced Resolution No. 2013-222 (recorded in Ordinance Book No._______at Page_______), executing Change Order No. 3 to the contract with Stuart C. Irby Co. to provide control and telemetry to forty (40) lift stations to extend the contract duration by one hundred twenty-three (123) calendar days. Commissioner Reading moved for adoption, motion seconded by Commissioner Kirkland and unanimously adopted.

Mayor Schmitz introduced Resolution No. 2013-223 (recorded in Ordinance Book No._______at Page_______), awarding the bid, entering into a contract and issuing a Notice to Proceed to American Infrastructure Technologies Corporation for the Sewer Rehabilitation on South Saint Andrews Street in the amount of $527,100.00 and appropriating funds for said contract. Commissioner Newsome moved for adoption, motion seconded by Commissioner Kirkland and unanimously adopted.

Mayor Schmitz introduced Resolution No. 2013-224 (recorded in Ordinance Book No._______at Page_______), entering into an agreement with Employment Screening Services for a fee based service for background checks required for employment with the City of Dothan for a three year period. Commissioner Kirkland moved for adoption, motion seconded by Commissioner Snellgrove and unanimously adopted.

Mayor Schmitz introduced Resolution No. 2013-225 (recorded in Ordinance Book No._______at Page_______), approving the payment of invoices for the month of June, 2013 in the amount of $11,873,777.58. Commissioner Kirkland moved for adoption, motion seconded by Commissioner Snellgrove and unanimously adopted.
Mayor Schmitz introduced Resolution No. 2013-226 (recorded in Ordinance Book No. _______at Page_______), awarding the following bids and approving other purchases over $15,000.00 by the City and appropriating funds for said bid. 

ITEM
VENDOR
AMOUNT

Chlorine Cylinders: 150 lb Cylinder
Allied Universal Corporation
See Price in

$48.95 each Quantity 850
Miami, FL
Description

(more or less) 1 Ton Cylinder

$397.00 each Quantity 100

(more or less)

1 Ton Sulfur Dioxide Cylinders
Allied Universal Corporation
See Price in

$588.00 each Quantity 25
Miami, FL
Description

(more or less)

Wilson Street Drainage Project 
Fortiline Water Works
See Price in

Materials, CDBG 2010, 95” x 67”
Springfield, FL
Description
12 Gauge Asphalt Coated 

Corrugated Metal Arch Pipe – 310

Linear Feet (more or less) – Freight

Per Truckload - $665.00 (7 more or

Less) 25 Foot Joints - $2,183.25 each

(10 more or less) 30 Foot Joints – 

$2,619.90 each (2 more or less)

Estimated Total Cost $31,727.30

Other Purchases:

40 Cubic Yard Standard Duty Roll Off
Wastequip, LLC
$
18,448.00

Containers with Standard Features
Charlotte, NC

$4,612.00 each (4 more or less) –

NJPA contract
Commissioner Snellgrove then moved for adoption of Resolution No. 2013-226, motion seconded by Commissioner Newsome and unanimously carried.

Mayor Schmitz introduced Resolution No. 2013-227 (recorded in Ordinance Book No._______at Page_______), approving the following advance travel requests for City employees:

NAME
CONFERENCE
AMOUNT

Steve Spry
16th Annual Planners’ and Zoning
$
358.12


Administrators’ Conference


Robertsdale, AL

Craig Dempsey
Dixie Angels – World Series Softball
$
1900.00

Roy Kitts
Tournament


Alexandria, LA

Brian Smith
Inspect Potential Command Vehicle
$
580.98

Kevin Williams
St. Louis, MO

Tony Thorne
Dixie Angels District 6 Softball Tournament
$
916.00


Roy Kitts
Troy, AL

Jinri Jiang
Alabama Recreation & Parks Association
$
5299.50

Brooke Greene              
State Swim Meet


Cullman, AL

Tim Mullis
NCFI Mobile Data Recovery
$
100.00


Hoover, AL




Greg Dean
Public Safety & Justice Conference hosted by
$
1362.00



SunGard Public Sector



Greensboro, NC

Rickey Tucker
IMSA Certification – Level I Traffic Signal
$
1810.00


Field Technician


Powder Springs, GA

Sean Gibson
AL-TF1 Medical Specialist
$
136.80


Mobile, AL

Jonathan Wood
Jr. Dixie Boys – State Baseball Tournament
   $
5725.00

Roy Kitts                                    Enterprise, AL
Commissioner Kirkland then moved for adoption of Resolution No. 2013-227, motion seconded by Commissioner Snellgrove and unanimously carried.
There being no further business, Commissioner Barbaree moved that the meeting be adjourned, motion seconded by Commissioner Kirkland and upon the unanimous vote of "yea," the meeting was duly adjourned until July 17, 2013 at 8:30 a.m. 
/s/Pam McCoy, City Clerk

See approval next page:

Approved:
/s/Mike Schmitz, Mayor

/s/James H. Reading, Associate Commissioner

/s/Amos M. Newsome, Jr., Associate Commissioner

Albert Kirkland, Associate Commissioner

/s/Critt Snellgrove, Associate Commissioner 

/s/Taylor Barbaree, Associate Commissioner

/s/Hamp Baxley, Associate Commissioner

BOARD OF CITY COMMISSIONERS

